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MEMORANDUM 

TO: Members, Assembly Housing Committee 

FROM: John V. Kelly, Chairman 

DATE: May 23, 1988 

SUBJECT: Committee meeting on June 2, 1988 

(Address questions and comments to John. B. Lee, Committee Aide.) 

The Committee will meet on Thursday, June 2, 1988, in Room 373, State House 
Annex, beginning at 10:00 a.m. 

Bills under consideration for report will be: 

A2719 
(Watson/Schwartz} 

A2918 
(Menendez/Kenny) 

A3017 
(Loveys} 

A3092 
(Palaia/Villane) 

AR91 
(Kelly /Zecker) 

AR92 
· (Kelly/Roma) 

Appropriates $525,000 for Neighborhood Housing 
Services grants. 

The "Housing Incentive ·zones A:ct." 

Requires the adoption of a model code as 
the energy conservation subcode of UCG. 

Requires all hotels and motels to keep a 
registry of guests: 

Requests DCA delay adoption of homeless 
shelter regulations. 

Memorializes Congress to extend tax 
exemption of mortgage revenue bonds. 

The Committee, after considering the above bills, wiU adjourn and reconvene 
to hold a public hearing on the following bill: 

A1757 
(Bush) 

. _.,._. ·.-·-·.--- ... .--, - - ........ . 

The "Tenants' and Landlords' Key Act." 



A&5EMBLY, No,·1757 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

Introduced Pending Technical Review by Legislative Counsel 

PRE-FILED FOR INTRODUCTION IN THE 1988 SESSION 

By Assemblywoman BUSH 

1 AN ACT regarding the keys to certain rental premises, and 

supplementing Title 46 of the Revised Statutes. 

3 

BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the 

5 State of New Jersey: 

1. This act. shall be known and may be cited as "The Tenants' 

7 and Landlords' Key Act." 

2. As used in this act, "dwelling unit" means any rented or 

9 leased residential premises, but shall not include a boarding 

room nor shall it include premises in a hotel, motel, or other 

11 guest house, or part thereof,· rented to a tr~ient guest or 

seasonal tenant, or a residential health care facility as defined 

13 in section 1 of P.L. 1953, c. 212 (C. 30:llA-1). . 

· 3. Each landlord of a dwelling unit_ in this State shall: . . 

15 a. In the presence. of the tenant, place any keys to the 

tenant's dwelling unit, except the keys given to the tenant, in a 

17 sealed envelope, which envelope shall be signed by the tenant 

across the sealed flap; 

19 b. Keep all envelopes which have been sealed pursuant to 

subsection a. of this section in a locked container, which 

21 . container shall remain the responsibility of the landlord, who 

shall exercise reasonable care in assuring the security of the 

23 container; and 

c, Permit the tenant to inspect, during normal business hours, 
25 the envelope containing the keys to his dwelling unit. 

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3 of this act, a 

27 landlord may·open a sealed.envelope and use the enclosed key to 

enter a dwelling unit if any of the following conditions exist: 

29 a. There is evidence of fire, water, or any other condition in 

the dwelling unit which is likely to cause significant damage to 

31 the dwelling unit, to another dwelling unit, or to common areas; 
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1 b. There is evidence that a condition exists which is 

life-threatening or which constitutes a serious, immediate 

3 health hazard; 

c. There is evidence that a person in the dwelling unit needs 

5 assistance for medical or other similar reasons; 

d. The landlord observes that the dwelling unit is not secure 

7 against entry and receives no response upon knocking or ringing 

the doorbell; or 

9 e. Entry into the dwelling unit is required under a local 

ordinance or a law of this State or the federal government. 

11 5. No later than 24 hours after a landlord uses a key sealed in 

an envelope to enter a tenant's dwelling unit pursuant to section 

13 4 of this act, the landlord shall notify the tenant of the 

following: 

15 a. That entry was made; 

b. The date of the entry; 

17 c. The reason for the entry; 

d. The nam_e of each p.erson who entered, and the name of the 

19 employer of each person who entered; and 

e. That the tenant has a right to place all the keys to his 

21 dwtdling _unit in ·another. sealed env~lope _under the same 

conditions set forth in section 3 of this act. · 

23 · 6. Following the landlord's use of a key sealed in an envelope 

to enter a dwelling unit, he shall propose a reasonable time, no 

25 later than seven days after. the use, to meet with the tenant, at 

which time all of the keys to the dwelling unit, .except those in 

27 the possession of the tenant, shall be resealed pursuant to 

section 3 of this act. 

29 7. l.f a condition specified in section 4 of this act does not 

exist, and if. the landlord uses the key in the sealed envelope to 

31 enter a tenant' s dwelling unit, the tenant shall have the right to 

clulnge the lock on the door and shall not be required to provide 

33 the landlord with a key to the dwelling unit. 

8. If any tenant replaces tpe locks on his dwelling unit under 

35 any circumstances other than those specified in section 7 of this 

act, the tenants shall, within 24 hours of the replacement give 

3 7 the key to the landlord. The landlord shall then have the key to 

the new lock sealed in the manner prescribed by section 3 of this 

39 act. During the period between the replacement of the 
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1 lock and the giving of the new key to the landlord, the tenant 

shall be liable for any damage to the door or other means of 

3 entry to the dwelling unit if the landlord enters the dwelling unit 
forcibly because of a condition specified in section 4 of this act 

5 exists. 
9. If a condition specified in section 4 of this act does not 

7 exist, and the landlord desires to enter. the dwelling unit, the 

landlord shall notify the tenant or the tenant's designee in 
9 writing of his desire to enter the dwelling unit and the purpose 

therefor. 
11 If the tenant refuses to allow the landlord entry for 

reasonable and proper purposes at a reasonable time. following 
13 reasonable notice, and fails to make a reasonable effort to reach 

an agreement with the landlord regartl!,ng· a mutually acceptable 

15 time for the landlord to· enter, the landlord shall be entitled to 
use the sealed key to achieve entry. For purposes of this 

17 section, "reasonable and proper purposes" shall include, but shall 

not be limited to, building code inspections, maintenance 

19 inspections,. routine maintenance, and, near the end of a rental 

term if the tenant. has exp!essed his intention not to renew his 
21· · rental agreement; ·showing the dwelling unit _'to potenti~ 

renters. For the purposes of this section, reasonable notice for 

23 such am. entry shall be three days. 

10. The Director of the Division of Consumer Affairs shall 
25 ·adopt, pursuant to the "Administrative Pcl'Qcedure Act," P.L. 

1968, c. 410 (C. 52:148-1 et seq,), rule$ and regulations as may 

27 be necessary or desirable to achieve the purposes of this act. 

11. A tenant and a landlord may agree to a modification or 

29 waiver of the provisions of this act, if: 

a. The waiver is encompassed in a separate written .contract 
31 in which the tel!l8rit shall stipu).ate "I am aware that I may give 

my key ·to the landlord in a sealed envelope with my name across 
33 the flap and that the landlord would then be prohibited from 

using the key to enter my dwelling unit except under certain 

35 emergency situations. Instead, I vobmtarily choose to provide 

my key directly to the landlord"; and 

37 . b. The written contact provided in subsection a. of this 
section has been prepared by the landlord and provided to the 

39 tenant at a time different than and subsequent to the time that 
the landlord provided the tenant with the lease and the lease 

41 was signed by both landlord and tenant. 
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12. This act shall take effect on the 60th day after 

enactment an~ shall apply to all contracts, leases or rental 
agreements for residential premises entered into or renewed on 

or after the effective date. 

STATEMENT 

This bill establishes procedures conceming the keeping of keys 

for rental units by landlords and restricts the rights of landlords 
to have access to rental units. The provisions of the bill apply 

to all residential rental units in the State except for hotels, 

motels, guest houses and residential health care facilities. 

Landlords would be required to put any keys to a rental unit, 

except for keys given to a tenant, in a sealed envelope with the 

tenant' s signature across the fiap. The envelope would be kept 

in a locked container and made available for the tenant's 

inspection during business hours, 

The \andlord would be pennitted to break the seal and use the 
key for entry only if entry is required under law, if the unit is 

not secure against entry and seems t~ be unoccupied, or if 
certain emergencies. involving significant pc>ssible damage to the 

unit or danger to ~ealth .. Th~ landlord would :be_ required ~o. 
notify the tenant within 24 hours of the entry ·and the 

circumstances of the entry and arrange to meet with the tenant 

within one week ·of the entry to reseal the key._ If· a landlord 
breaks the seal to use the key under any other circumstances the 

. tenant may change the lock of the unit and keep all of the keys. 

Any tenant who changes a lock under other circumstances is 
required to give the landlord the new key within 24 hours and is 

liable for any damage to the door or means of entry if the 
landlord has to enter forcibly during that time due to an 

emergenc:y or other circumstances under which the landlord may 
break the seal to use the key. 

The landlord would also have a right to enter the unit for 

maintenance and building code inspections, routine maintenance 

and, near the end of the rental tenn if the tenant intends to 
vacate, to show the unit to potential renters. Urider these 
circumstances, if the tenant does not pennit entry at a 

reasonable time following three days notice and fails to make a 

reasonable effort to arrange a mutually acceptable time for the 

entry, the landlord may break the seal and use the key. 
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1 The bill permits waivers or modification of its provisions in 

rental agreements only if the tenant indicates in writing that he 

3 is aware of his rights under the bill but is voluntarily waiving 

them and if the waiver is given to the tenant and signed by him 

5 at a time later than the time that the tenant and landlord signed 

the.lease. 

7 
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AMENDMENTS 
to 

A!embly, No.1757 
(Sponsored by-Assemblywoman Bush) 

1 JNSERI NEW SECJIQN 3 JP RJ:iAQ; 
13_ Nothing in. this act shall reqajre a landlord to have a key 

3 to any dwelling unit;. but if the landlord elects to pgssess such a 

key, the provisions of this act shall be adhered to, 1 

s RENUMBER SECJJON 3 AS 4, 
REPLACE; §EGTIQN 4 IP REAQ; 

7 1(4.]§;_1 Notwithstancting the provisions of section 1[3]!1 of 

this act, a landlo~ may open a sealed envelope and use the 

9 enclosed key to enter a dwelling unit if any of the following 

conditiOQS exist: 

11 a.· 'l'here is ·mdenc;e of fire, water, or any .other condition in 
the dwelling unit which is likely to cause significant dmnage to 

13 · the dwelling unit, to another dw.~lling unit, or to common areas; 
b. .There is evidence · that a·· condition ~xists. which is 

·1s life-threatening or which constitutes a S"erious, immediate 

health huard; 
17 c. There is evidence that a-person in the dwelling unit needs 

assistance •f.or medical or other similar reasons; 

19 l(d.. The 1-dlord observes that the dwelling unit is not secure 

against entry and receives no _response upon knocking or ringing. 

21 the doorbell;]l or 

e. l(Entry] Immediate entryl into the dwelling unit is 

23 required under a local ordinance or a law of this State or the 

federal gover®1entl, without court order, .or if a court order for 

25 immediate entiy has been obtained. If immediate ent:a is not _a 

part of the court order, then the ptovisions of section 111 of this 

27 act shall applyl, 

REPLACE SEcnpN 5 m REAp; 
29 1(5,) L 1 No later ~an 24 hours after a landlord uses a key 

sealed in an envelQpe to enter a tenant's dwelling unit pursuant 

31 to section 1[4) _§.1 of this act, the landlord shall notify the tenant 
·· · ._ of the following: · ----........ 

. '. , ... ~ .. 
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a. That entry was made; 

b. The date of the entry; 

c. The reason for the entry; 

d. The name of each person who entered, and the name of the 

employer of each person who entered; and 

e. That the tenant has a right to place all the keys to his 

dwelling unit m another sealed envelope under the same 

conditions set forth in section 1(3) .41 of this act. 

REpLAc:g §EqTIQN 6 IP REAP; · 
1[6.] z.:.1 Following the landlord's use of a key sealed m an 

envelope to enter a dwelling unit, he shall propose a reasonable 

time, no later than seven days after the use, to meet with the 

tenant, at which time all of the keys to the dwelling unit, except 

those in the possession of the tenant, shall be resealed pursuant­

to section 1(3] !:, 1 of this act. 

RJ;;PMG§ §ECfTIQN Z IP BMP; 
'1[_1.J a.1 If a condition specified in section 1(4) §:_1 of this act 

does not exist, and if the landlord uses the key in the sealed 

env:elope to enter a tenant's dwelling unit, the tenant shall have 

the right to change ~ lock on the door and sh-11 · not be 

r~d to pl'O"lide the landlo~ with a key. to the dwelling unit. 
... ·_ 

REPLACE aec;TIQN 8 IQ RM,Q; 
1(8~] i:_ 1 If any tenant lhas beeg required .to give the landlord 

a k8Y pursuant to a lease gr rentai agre.ement. and the tenantl 
. . . - . 

replaces the locks on bis dwelling unit under any circumstances 
· other than those specified. in section 1(7] §.:.1 · of this· act, the 

tenants shall, within 24 hours of the replacement give the key to 

the landlord. The landlord shall. then have the key to the new 
lock sealed in the manner prescribed by section 1[3) !:, 1 of this 

act. During the period l[betweenl followingl the replacement of · 

the loc:k and tenor tol the giving of the new key to the landlord, 

the tenant shall be liable for any damage to _the door or other 

means of entry to the dwelling unit if the landlord enters the 

dwelling. unit forcibly because of a condition specified in sec.lion 
1[4) §:_1 of this act exists. 

RERJ«'GE SECTION ·9 IP READ; 
1(9.) ~1 If a_ condition specified in section 1(4) s.l ·of this 

act does not exist, and the landlord di!sires to enter the dweWng 

unit, the landlord shall notify the tenant or the tenant's 

designee m writmg of his desire to enter the dweWng wlit and 

the purpose therefor . 

. ,: ...... _ _., .... _ .. ~- ... .-., ,.--------.. ----- •· -
- '• 00 •• -~-H~-- •0 • 0 • • •• --.. -••,.-•···•--·•I'•- OW . · ... '. : . . . • .••• -:'J ~ .- ·-
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1 If the tenant refuses to allow the landlord entry for 

reasonable and proper purposes at a reasonable time following 

3 reasonable notice, and fails to make a reasonable effort to reach 

an agreement with the landlord regarding a mutually acceptable 

5 time for the landlord to enter, the landlord shall be entitled to 

use the sealed key to achieve entry. For purposes of this 

7 section, "reasonable and proper purposes" shall include, but shall 

not be limited to., building code inspections, maintenance 

9 inspections, routine maintenance, and, near the end of a rental 

term if the tenant has expressed his intention not to renew his 

11 rental agreement, showing the dwelling unit to potential 

renters. For the purposes of this section, reasonable notice for 

13 such an entry shall be three days. 

RENUMBER SECTIONS 10, l1 and 12 AS 11. 12 a.'ld 13, 
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ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN V. KELLY (Chairman}: We are now 

going to convene the public hearing on Assemblywoman Bush's 

bill -- A-1757 -- the key bill. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First 

of all, I realize we are under a time constraint, and I want to 

thank you for having at least part of this public hearing on 

this date. 

Since our last hearing on the matter, I have been 

approached- by a number of people constituents, 

representatives, etc. -- so there are a number of amendments I 

have submitted, which I believe are being passed out at this 

time. I have one other amendment I will discuss. 

Because it is a late date and a late time and people 

have not seen ··these amendments, I am going to take an 

opportunity to somewhat go through the bill to tell you what it 

really means at this point, as I propose it to be. 

The purpose of the bill · is to protect tenants with 

. regard to landlords or their agents entering their premises in 

non-emergency situations. It appears from much of the 

cor~espondence I- ha~e r~ceived "from · indivi~tials tha.t this . is a 

prevalent problem, whether it be superintendents, landlords, or 

whatever, particularly in the instance of ~ingle women, senior 

citizens, etc. 

This will also protect the landlord from the unfounded 

allegations of harassment of the tenant by coming in and doing 

things of that sort. 

It would require that-- First of all, one of the 

amendments, in going down here-- We begin by saying that 
nothing in this would require a landlord to have a key for the 

dwelling unit. But if the landlord elects to .make this 

requirement in the lease agreement, then the ·following 

provisions would act, because there was some question about 
. . 

this being required. So, no landlord if:! required to have a 

key, but if he or she does so, the following would be 

required. We have a number of changes. 

1 
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First of all, the key would be placed in an envelope. 

The back flap would be signed by the tenant. As I will be 
proposing, . the landlord will be able to go in without the 
tenant's .: .. permission in· emergency situations, · which .are 

specified·. Tf the landlord does so, he will advise ·the tenant 

within 24 hours that he did so -- who went in and what was 

done, ·etc. -- and w-i thin seven days, the key must be placed 
back into the envelope, and the tenant have the opportunity to 

sign it. 
We go further down and: These envelopes will have to 

be in a locked container, and there should be reasonable care 

to ensure the security of these containers. 

The landlord would be able to go in under emergency 

situatlons, such as evidence of fire, water, or other _condition 

which is likely to cause significant damage to the dwelling 

unit or to common areas within the premises -:-- the apartment 
above or below, etc.; or ·if there is evidence that a condition 
exists which is life-threatening or which constitutes a 

serious, immediate health hazard; or if it appears that the 
''.person·'in- the~e- needs medica"i :a.ssi~tanc.e 'or:bther types-·of 

assistance. 

My amendments would delete· subsection d. of what was 

section 4. What was 4. d. would be deleted. The landlord 
would not be ·able to go in-- It would not be considered an 

emerg.ency just because there was no response at the door or a 
response to the ringing" of the bell. That is deleted; that is 
not an emergency. 

The next section, I have added where it indicates-­

Initially, it said: "Entry into the dwelling unit .is required 

under a local ordinance or a law of this St.ate or the Federal 

government. "· I have changed that to say: "Immediate entry 

into t_he dwelling unit is required under a local ordinance or a 
law of this State or the Federal government, -without cpurt 
order, or if a court order for immediate entry has been 

2 
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obtained. If imrneaiate entry is not a pa.rt of the court order, 

then the provisions of section 10 of this Act shall apply." 

That .is. somewhat iirrelevant· at this point;· But in other words, 
what -we- are · saying now · is, just because you have the right to 

go-- -in: under a- local ordinance o.r a law of · this State or the 
Federal government, you can only go in as an emergency if you. 

have a court order, or if no court order is required. 
Then it goes q.own to what I was saying before. What 

was section 8, in our amendments becomes now section 9. What I 

have added here is with· regard to when cl tenant would be 

required to give the landlord a key -- if they have changed the 
lock. 

Now, if a landlord were to break this law and go in 

under a . non-emergency situation and not advise the tenant 
appropriately within 24 hours as to who went in, why they went 
in, and allow the tenant to sign the envelope within seven days 

to put it back into the. sealed envelope-- If the landlord 

fails to do that, or if the landlord has just walked into the 

apartment for harassment or anything that is :n~t deli;neated · in 
here·, then,, · by thi:s .. law~ the ·tenapt. will not . be·. reqUired to_ 

give the landlord a key if they change the lock, because the 

landlord has broken the law. 
If, however, the landlord has gone in, as is allowed 

under this bill, then the tenant will give the landlord a key 

only if it has ·been initially required- in the lease to begin 
-with, arl.d if no laws have been broken as are indicated ·within 

this. Am I being understood right there in that regard? 

(affirmative response) Then the landlord will have to put this 
new key back in the e~velope, as was ~one previou£?ly. 

During the time · between replacing the lock and giving 
a key to. the landlord,. the tenant would be responsible for any 

damages that occur to the door, if an emergency situation arose 

and the landlord had to knock the door down to get in. 

3 
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Then, after much discussion and consideration with a 

number of people, particularly constituents, and because I 

think the purpose. of this bill, as intended, is to protect 

tenants and to determine what is an emergency. situation-- It 

is not in here as yet,· but I am going to submit an amendment 

that would delete all of section 9, which deals . with the 

landlord entering for non-emergency purposes. So, this bill 

would not deal with entering the premises for non-emergency 

purposes, but would deal specifically in terms of the landlord 

entering the premises for delineated emergency situations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: The only reason I was looking at 

you quizzically is, I have been in government for over 15 

years--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Yes? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: ---and I have gotten complaints 

about everything, but never about a landlord entering an 

apartment. I have gotten calls where they said they couldn't 

find their landlord to get a key, because they lost their key, 

you know, and they had. to .get into their apar_t~ent. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH:. Well--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: If you don't · mind, is this a 

widespread--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: It is my understanding that . it 

is. I say my understanding based upon the number of letters I 

hc?-ve received; my understanding as an attorney who has, you 
know, practiced in East Orange for 10 years; my understanding 

as a person who lives in East Orange, which is 75% tenants. So 

many of the people I know are tenants, and there is concern as 

·to people coming into apartments, and things of that sort. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: Is it more of an urban problem 

than a suburban problem? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: It is a people problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: But the whole thing is-- You 

know, in my district -- and I am being honest about it -- I 

4 
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have never gotten a call, and I have gotten complaints on just 

about everything. I have a lot of tenant units in my district, 

but I have never.gotten a complaint on this. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN • -BUSH-: Maybe the complaints -are not 

coming to you; or maybe- you are . lucky -- or more so, ... the 

tenants within your area are lucky, in that they don't have 
this problem. But I don't think it is an urban versus rural 
problem. Things that happen in urban areas happen just as much 

in rural areas, sometimes in an even more atrocious mariner. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: I would. imagine that a 

landlord-- The one thing he doesn't want is to be sued, 

because his insurance premiums go up. I would think that most 
landlords are very, very careful before they go into a person's 

private dwelling. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN_ BUSH: Right, I would think . so, too . 

Realize, this is not just the landlord himself, :but ·the 

landlord would also be responsible for-- There are 

superintendents a:nd a number of other people who are agents for 

the· ~a11:dlords who would have ·access- to keys. So, many times 
the ·tenant nev.er sees· the landlord.· They' re· abs·erit;· they live 

someJ?lace else. They don't have a hands-on sitµation there, 
but there may be superintendents who, you know, can change 
quite frequently, and such, who could ·-be doing the same thing. 
As an agent of the landlord, this would be a requirement placed 

on the landlord. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: And the landlord could be just as 
easily sued if his agent brok~ into that apartment, right? 

ASSEMBL~OMAN BUSH: Well, yeah, it's a cost of 
business. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Are you finished? 
ASS!MBLYWOMAN BUSH: Yes, I--' m f fnished. 
ASSEl\mLYMAN KELLY: The first· person we have on our 

list here who would like to address us is Ms. ·Kaye, New Jersey 
Tenants Organization. 
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PHYLLIS S A L O W - K A Y E: I submitted my 

testimony. It was mailed to you. However, it involved the 

bill before it -was amended, so - I don't have anything to reflect 

the amendments. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: All right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: There will be more copies of 

your testimony? 

MS. SALOW-KAYE: No. We sent our testimony to Mr. Lee 

about 10 days ago, but it dealt with the bill before it was 

amended. The only thing I have here is--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: Do you have a copy of the 

testimony? 

MS. SMARTH (Assembly Majority Staff): No, I don't 

have a copy. 

MS. SALOW-KAYE: I can give you another copy of it, 

but it is not relevant because the bill has currently been 

amended. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: Yeah, but I would 1 ike to read 

your comments anyhow. 

MS. SALOW-KAYE: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZECKER: Then I don't have . to take a lot 

of notes. 

MS. SALOW-KAYE: Okay. I ' 11 get you cqpies and bring 

them back. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I don't have a copy? None of us-­
MS, SALOW-KAYE: We sent you 10 copies. 

ASSEMBLYMAN. KELLY: To me? 

MS. SALOW-KAYE: No, to John Lee, when we signed up ---
10 copies. 

MR. LEE (Committee Aide): Ten copies? 

MS. SALOW-KAYE: Yeah. 

MS. SMARTH: Maybe the mail--

MS. SALOW-KAYE: Well, I'll get them to you. You're 

not going to vote the bill out today. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: No, at a hearing you can't. 

MS. SALOW-KAYE: About 10 years ago, the New Jersey 

Tenants Organization · ana · the New· ·Jersey·· Nationa-1 Organization 

for Women· got · together over a bill, at that point to protect 

women tenants, as well as others, from being forced to give 

their keys to their landlords. It was a problem we had all 

encountered. It was very prevalent amongst members of both 

organizations. 
At that time, we were talking about a bi 11 which would 

be· very simple. It would say: A tenant is not· required to 

give the key at all and, if they gave the key-- If the 

landlord didn't have a key and he had to get in, the tenant 

would be liable for the damage. There was no talk of 

envelopes, and no talk of anything else -- signatures. · 

At that time, and as time continued in the past thre.e 

or four years, it appeared it was impossible to pass a bill 

-that strict. Also, we found out there were many tenants who 

wanted an option to do something other than just not give the 

key, becau,se they didp't want _ to make __ thems~lves personally 
l·iable fo·r the door be"ing broken down. 

So_, we have to give another. option, and that iS how we 

came up with_ this whole idea of the key and the envelope with 

the signature. The New Jersey Tenants Organization has had 

many, many complaints from all counties -- not just urban 

countie.s -- and expecially from women who live alone, or women 

who are alone with their children, who rightly fear the 

requirement to hand over a key to a landlord. The keys of ten 

end up in the pockets of maintenance p~rsonnel and other males 
who ·may have nothing to do with the maintenance of the 
building; for instance, past employees. 

Right now in Mercer County, there is a case pending 

that is a death penalty hearing, over a former maintenance man 

who used a key after- he left the employ of the building. He 

used the key he had to enter an apartment, and he killed 
----._._,...,___ 
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someone. That is a current . case. The man has been found 

guilty, and now I think they are contemplating whether it is a 

death penalty hearing or not. 
:·. -;-:-.:..::Landlor.ds:,,-:-· as well as maintenance pe·ople, have been 

known to walk in on women · who have to come home each day 

knowing that the super who has previously perhaps made sexual 

advances towards her, now has the key to her apartment. We 

have found situations where tenants have gotten out of the 

shower in the morning, thought their apartment was vacant, only 

to walk in on a service person, a maintenance man, a 

superintendent, who said, "Oh, yeah, I knocked. I didn't get 

any answer . " We have instances of women getting up in the 

morning out of bed to find a maintenance person or a 

superintendent leaning over them or looking around their 

· bedroom. We have had instances where surprise inspections are 

held to see whether apartments are clean or not. We have had 

instances where landlords come in just to look around. 

Today's tenant is much. more likely to be a female or a 

f.emale with children, just be~ause ~f economic reasons. Our 

original · support for the- bill was due. to ·our belief. that a 

tenant's right to privac.y was more important than the. 

landlord's right to a key, which often was a coerced r~ght, 

since the tenant really has no bargaining power. 

wants to get an apartment, she signs a lease 

requires that she give the key. She is going to 

When a person 

and the . lease 

give that key, 
or otherwise she is going to end up sleeping in a hotel, or out 

on the street. 

So, it is not a situ,ation the way it used to be, where 

you -could come in, get a lease, and sit· down and go over it 

with a landlord, and say: "Well, I'll do this," or "I won't do 

that. " "I ' 11 give the key, " or "I won't give the key. " It' s 

not like that any more. You either have to take it or leave it. 

Wha-t this bi 11 does, with the amendments , is just make 

tenants feel more secure in ·their right to live in an apa.rtment 
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without being harassed. We support all of the amendments that 

have been given. 

I would just .. like to speak to one more area where 

there seems to be some difference of opinion. We think·. it has 

been solved, but we are a little concerned about section 8, the 

first sentence, which says: "If any tenant replaces the locks" 

-- I don't know if it is old section 8 or new section 8; there 

are several forms of the bill floating around -- "on his 

dwelling unit under any circumstances other than those 

spec~fied in section 7 of this Act, the tenants shall, within 

24 hours of the replacement give the key to the landlord." We 

would just like to see that be "may give the key to the 

landlord." Right now, existing law does not require that a 

tenant give the key. We understand that Assemblywoman Bush has 

put a line in preceding that to say that you don't have to do 

it unless your iease .requires it. We would just feel more 

confident if that first "shall" was changed to "may." However, 

we_ believe that the amendments that have been offered clearly 

-help to protect a tenant who is living in an apartment. · . _ 
We would urge;- number one, · that· you ~et a . ·aate ·_-today~ -. 

hopefully, for ·the vote on this bill, and that we don't have to 

wait two months for the·testimony to be transcribed, as we have 

had to in the past, not necessarily in this Committee. There 

have been other instances where public hearings were held on a 

bill, and then the sponsor of the bill was unable to release it 

pending or have it come up for a vote, pending the 

transcript of the hearing. We would just urge you not to get 

caught up in that time frame, because we think this is an 
important bill. It still has a long way to go to become law, 
and we urge you to support it. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Just one thing in that regard. 

You may not have the amendments, but-- · She was making 

reference to what was section 8, which is the ·.new section 9. 

It now reads, in total : "If any tenant has been required to 
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give the landlord a key pursuant to a lease or rental 
agree~ent, and the tenant replaces the locks on his dwelling 
unit under ·any:· circumstan<:!es- other .than .those specified in 

section- - -what; -was-- 7, now 8 of this Act:---= the -tenant shall,-; 

within 24 .hours of the replacement give the-- key· to the 

landlord~" So, this is saying only if they were required to do 

so initially under a lease, and only if the landlord has not 

entered the premises illegally. 
MS. SALOW-KAYE: That is _the only real point, and it 

is not at all that major. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Don Romaniello? 

anything other than what was said, b_ecause 

New Jersey Tenants Association, too. Do 

other than what Ms. Salow-Kaye offered?·. 

Now, do you have 

you represent the 

you have anything 

D O N A L D R O M A N I E L L 0: A couple of minor things. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: A couple of minor things? 

MR. ROMANIELLO: Yes, a couple of minor things. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KEI,.LY: Because I· want to speed this up._ 

MR. ROMANIELLO: Okay. I will be .as brief as r· 
possibly ·can.· 

Again,· there were a number _of comments about landlords 

or superintendents entering buildings. I have been a paralegal 

additionally with the Bergen County Housing Coalition for seven 
years. I see probably about 2000 or 3000 tenants over the 
course of each year. The issue of keys is a major issue. 

Before coming here today, I did some research on the 
area of crime and households. I discovered that in 1985, in 

the United States, there were 5.6 million burglaries in the 
United States. Two and a half million, or 45% of those 

burglaries, were without forced entry. So, people have a very 

real fear of keys being in the stream of commerce, so to speak, 

and people coming in_ unauthorized, without any prior 
notification, and really for no good reason at all: The 
average burglary - costs $991 for a residential burglary. For 
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the last two years i_n New Jersey, we have been looking at about 
80,000 burglaries a year. 

--, .ASSEMBLYMAN.KELLY~:. Wait a minute. ··Do you·think this 
key bill is going ·to s·top· the burglaries? 

-MR. , ROMANIELLO: I believe the issue of non-forced 
entry into an apartment is a very real fear that tenants have. 
No, this is not going to stop it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: It is not going to stop any of 
them. 

MR. ROMANIELLO: No. The point I am trying to make is 
that people have a real fear of giving their keys· out to 
strangers; of giving their keys 0':1,t to supers in very large 
complexes, which have four or five different maintenance 
wo.rkers, where there are four o~ five copies of the key for 
each ?f the maintenance workers, and people coming in and out 
of their apartments at all 0 times. I have come home and found 
my radio tuned to stations that I have never listened to 
before, and · haven't listened to since. This went on 
regularly. I don't want to_ do horror storie;s .. I prefer, you 
know, to -deal with it as broadly as -possible. But the fact is, 

·there are very real fears, and there is a bas~s for those very 
real fears. That is why I brought forth those statistics. I'm 
sorry. 

There are just a couple of minor things that have not 
been brought to our attention. Section 3. c. of the bill deals 
with permitting the tenant to inspect the envelope during 
normal business hours. The only problem~ with that is, the 
people who have the most to fear about someone coming in and 
out of their _apartment are the people who work; people who are 
away during normal busine~s hours. I don't know how this 
problem could be addressed. Perhaps having some-other kind of 
requirement. But the problem is, during normal business hours 
is when the people who are most vulnerable to someone coming in~. 
unauthorized, are away. So, they can't have access to their 
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envelope t~ see if the seal has been broken. So that could be 

a problem for. a number of tenants. As we all know, more and 

more people, are working,, . or they are ·. two-inc9me 'fa.mil ies; 

There · are not as many people around the home today as there 

were 10, 15, or 20 years ago. That is one possible area. 

Another is-- Actually, because of the amendments, a 

lot of things have changed. As far as section 11, "A tenant 

and a landlord may agree to a modification or waiver of the 

provisions of this Act, if--" Essentially, what that is saying 

is, the tenant has the right, with informed_ consent, to say, 

you know, "Here's the key. You don't have to put it in an 

envelope." I would prefer to see a section that provides for a 

modification· or waiver, to provide modification or waiver in 

both directions, in which the landlord is not r·equi.red to have 

the key at all. If yoµ have waiver and modification, it should 

swing both ways. 

As far as section 4. e., which concerns--

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: If the l_andlord has no key, how 

would he get in at the time of an emergency? I .am just 

· curious. If he has· no key_._ Is- ·that what you just said? 

MS.· SALOW-KAYE . ( speaking from audience) : The fire 

department breaks the door down. 

MR. ROMANIELLO: The fire department breaks the door. 

There is an assumption of risk then. As Phyllis explained, one 

of the problems with-- Presently, if a landlord does not have 
the key and th.ere is an emergency, the landlord has the· right 

to break open the door, and the tenant.assumes the risk that he 

will have to pay for the replacement of the door, and perhaps 

even other damages that may be incurred because of the delay. 

That is the assumption of risk that the tenant takes. Okay? I 

think there is a very legitimate assumption of risk. So, with 

regard to a waiver, it should swing both ways. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN li3USH: If I may address that point,··· so I 

won't forget it. I think it does by the amendment that has 
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been inserted as a new section 3, which says: "Nothing in this 

Act shall require a landlord to have a key to any dwelling 

un.it; :but. --if :the landloi;d elects _ to possess ,such- a key, the 
provisions o-f ·th-is Act shall be adhered to;"·-······ ~-

MR. ROMANIELLO: Okay, ·I think that's. -faiE'. · 

One other thing-- I don't have a real problem. It's 
section 4. e., which is to allow immediate access for local, 

Federal, and State government inspectors. I believe they 

already have that authorization anyway, so I don't know if this 

section is really needed. Each and every one of the inspectors 
obviously has an authority provision which allows them to 

enter, under what conditions, and with what kind of notice. So 

it may be simpler just to omit 4. e. , because it doesn it really . 
change a whole lot. If you have a search warrant, obviou_sly 
the tenant will have to, you know, give it up, and for all 

other inspections they.are required to do that. 

In parting, I would just like to make one final 
comment. We are talking about the right to pr~vacy. · The right 

to privacy is a very, ve.ry basic American . right. The Fo~rth 
. -Am~ndment grant's the ·;right of 'the peopie to be· sec:ur~. in their - . 

persons,· homes, papers and effects. Unreasonable searcJ:ies and 

seizures· will not be permitted. People have a right not. to 
have people wandering in their apartments with no prior notice, 
and often for very invalid reasons. Landlords come up with all 

sorts of reasons that are not valid. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Thank you. Are you finished? 

MR. ROMANIELLO: Yes , I am. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Thank you. Ms: Short? 

C A R O L A N N S H O R T: I, -also, will be able to send--
you testimony later based on the amendments. I don't have that 
with me now, 

Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and member.s of the 

A~sembly Hoµsing Committee. My name is Carol Ann Short. I am 
here on behalf of the New Jersey Builders Association, as well 
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as the Institute of Multi-Family Housing, which is a wholly 

owned subsidiary of the Builders Association. I am here today 

to• -testify briefly on A--1757; : sponsored• by· Assemblywoman, Bush, 

and·entitled "The·Tenants' and Landlords' Key Act." 

This bill outlines specific procedures concerning the 

keeping of keys for rental units by landlords, and details the 

conditions under which the landlords may have access to those 

units. 

Before I get into the specifics of A-1757, let me 

first pref ace my . cottlirlents by saying that the Builders 

Association and the Multi-Family Institute would support 

legislation to supply a standard of reasonableness for access 

to a uni~ on the part of the landlord. However, we cannot 

support a bill which would mandate that all property owners 

adhere to an overly restrictive and cumbersome process which is 

aimed at eliminating an unreasonable entry. It is important to 

recognize -- as was stated by other speakers before me -- and 

keep in mind the protection of th~ rights not of just the 

tenan1:=s, but of all ~he parties ·that would be_ involved and 

affected by ·this- legislation: 

Number one, the property owner's rig~t, as the owner 

of the property, to effectively manage and efficiently manage 

this property; number two, the tenants' right to be safe and . 

secure in their homes; and number three, the individual 

tenant's right to privacy. We do recogni_ze that tenants do 
have a right of privacy within their rental units. We suggest, 

however, that these sometimes competing interests can best be 

served not by the provisions in this bill, as amended, but 

rather by_ developing a standard of reasonableness in the law to 

guide the courts in their determination of a reasonable entry 

on the part of the property owners. 

It is this standard that can then be utilized by the 

tenant in an attempt to demonstrate that there has, in fact, 

been an unreasonable entry. The bill before you today fails 
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this balancing test for a number of· reasons. Number one, the 

penalty provision which is provided .. for in the bill provides 

that i:f 'a :_condition ·in , section 4 -does. not - -exist· and..., the 

landlord uses the key to enter the unit-- Otherwise, then the 

tenant shall have the right to change the lock on the door, and 

then shall not be required to provide the landlord with a key 

to the dwelling unit. It has been further amended to make it 

even more onerous, as suggested by the builders. 

This section does not specify, first, who shal 1 make 

the determination as to whether or not. the conditions in 

section 4 have been violated. I am not sure if it is 

discretionary upon the tenant to determine that there has been 

a violation. It doesn't state that the determination must then 

be made by a court of law, prior to··the tenan:t having the 

option to change the lock on the door. 

The penalty provision is totally out of balance. 

While it· protects the individual right to privacy; it 

completely disregards the rights of all of the other tenants 

who are living in that building to their safety .and security 
. . - . . . . 

while they are living· there, as well as the property·. owner's 

right to have · some degree of control in the maintenance and 

management of his own property. 

The property owner has a responsibility for the safety 

and welfare of all tenants residing in the building, and not 

just the tenant · who has complained of an unreasonable entry, 

which we have not yet determined has, in fact, occurred. 

Once a tenant changes the lock on his door without 

providing a k~y to the landlord, that tenant has put himself, 

as well as all of the other tenants in the building, in 

jeopardy of possible life-threatening conditions. , If an 

emergency occurs in that unit and access is not immediate, or 

they have to wait for someone to come and break down the door, 

the other tenants in that building may be in jeopardy of 

life-threatening conditions. No individual's right of privacy 
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should exceed the right of all of the tenants who live in the 

building to be safe and secure in their homes in a 

life-threatening situation. 
· · · _ . ..._ A·:_pena1ty·-_·provision to-· be effective, .. ·must, act to 

discourage the behavior· .. that· is· prohibited. Its - objective 
should be to deter future similar action, without jeopardizing 

the safety and health of others. 
We suggest that in a process where a test of 

reasonableness of an entry can been established, and which· has 

been determined by a court of .law to be unreasonable entry 

based on a standard, then appropriate penalties can be 

enforced, keeping in balance the rights of all of those who are 
involved. There can be restraining orders issued; there can be 

monetary fines imposed; there can be a penalty· against the 

. property own-er holding him in contempt, or there are a variety 

of other penalties which can be imposed aimed at prohibiting 

future action -- deterring action which has occutred. 
Freedom of contract: Free.dam of parties. to contract 

i~d~J;>endently is a principle p:r~vid~ t;o all of us ~n the 
Constitution: Thi:s bill, as written,· is -~vetly ·restr.i'ctive -of 

that concept and, in effect, denies one's right to contract 

freely on this issue. The waiver provision in the b~ll- is 

extreme. It requires a separate written contract. The bill 
specifies the wording that must be incorporated, if you want to 

have a separate written contract not adhering to th'3 provisions 
in this bill. It requires when that contract must be signed. 

It can't be signed at the same time as the lease. It has to be 
a di_f f erent time. 

This does not sound like a freedom of ·contract, but 

rather an unconstitutional impairment of . the freedom of 

contract clause, which we suggest would not withstand judicial 
scrutiny. 

This issue involving specific procedures for the 

distribution of keys, we maintain, would be most effectively 
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and efficiently dealt with through individual contract 

agreements with a certain standard o_f reasonableness as a guide 

to the courts< · --
We are -·not advocating an unbridled right of entry on 

' 
behalf of the property owner, but would rather seek a middle 

ground to keep the rights of all parties in balance. This bill 

before us today abridges the rights of too many people who have 

an interest in the property. 
Just a short comment on what was said. There wi 11 

always be horror stories on an issue like this, but we do not 
believe that this bill will in any way obviate those stories. 

You are still going to have people bre~king and entering and 

harassing somebody, whether or not the key is accessible. This 

bill is not going to address that issue. -

We would be willing to work with the sponsor on some 

type of legislat~on to develop some type of guide -- standards 
of reasonableness to guide the courts. 

- Thank you very much for your time. 'Any questions? 

ASSEM:F.3LYMAN KELLY: Are there any ~estions? (no 
·. respons·e) Sµe Covais·, New Jersey Association- Gf -Realtors-.. 

S U E C O V _A I S: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Sue 

Covais. I repres.ent the 47, ooo-member New Jersey Association 

of Realtors. We had a statement prepared, but it is not 

relevant in light of the amendments. So I am just going to 
address myself to some of the problems we see in the bill which 
we oppose. 

One of the main problems-- I guess I will reiterate 
what Carol Ann Short say about reasonableness. · The way I look 
at this bil;L, a_s presently amended, you need a court order to 
have an inspection done. If you haven't got a key to a unit, 

how doe.s DCA . come and inspect that building? It would be hard 

to determine if a life-threatening sit~ation existed, if you 
hadn't been i_nspecting the building on a regular basis. I 
can't see where this bill allows DCA to come in and do · an 
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inspection. Even if they give you three days' notice, if they 

haven't got a key, they haven't got a key. Would you break 

down a door?- · Would you have a court order to do an inspection? 

Another very simple problem:. · If a tenant gets , locked 

out-- The tenant is not required to give the landlord a key, 

so the landlord has no key. How does the tenant get in? He 

would have to cal 1 up a locksmith, The landlord wi 11 not be 

able to let a tenant into his own apartment if he is not 

allowed to have a key. To me, that is going a little bit too 

far in addressing-- I know there may be probiems with 

landlords having keys, but this, I think, is really an 

inappropriate response. It seems very cumbersome and very, you 

know-- Even if a child of a tenant gets locked out-- . If a 

tenant can call up the landlord and verbally tell the landlord, 

"Let my kid into that apartment--" The landlord cannot do it 

aqcording to this bill. He would need a court order, or 

something, to let a child·of a tenant into the building if the 

child lost the key. Even in the initial bill, that was not 

permitted--- That.was not a permitted use. 

Family members..,;.;. If you: are ne>t ·.answering·. your 

doorbell and a family member goes to the landlord and says, "I. 

think there is something wrong," is that evidence enough to 

break down the door? Would I, a.s a landlord, be in violation 

of the law if I broke down your door, or if I tried to use the 

key from that sealed envelope? I don't see where this bill 

allows this. It deleted that part, where the unit is not 

secure, or they received no response by knocking or ringing 

your doorbell. 

I think a landlord and a superintendent would be so 

confused as to when they could and wheri they could not use the 

key, they would simply not use the key unless there was a fire 

in that apartment, and then they would have to break down the 
door, 
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. , .. 

I really think we have to take a more reasonable look 

at this issue, and really find out how many problems they are 

having; how many law~uits·there have been. We,have heard about 

one case . .:.:. ... You know," we··have to---really ·look :at .. this--issue. --r 
am -not sure-- We personally at our Association haven't really 

heard this as a problem from pepole -- that there is a key 

problem. I agree with what Assemblyman Zecker said before. If 

I am a landlord, why would I want any increased liability? I 

think there is plenty of room for landlord and tenant to agree 

on what is reasonable when dealing with keys. For example,- I 

believe in New York City they have two locks; the tenant has a 

key to the ~op lock; the bottom lock, the landlord has the 

key. That is not a law over there. It is just the practice 

they follow. If the tenant doesn't want that landlord in, he 

just throws the dead bolt. That, to me, is a more reasonable 

voluntary response than not even allowing a tenant to get._ in 

his own unit because they haven't agreed to it in writing, or 

they haven't signed a waiver, or so on and so forth, or the 

landlord doesn '.t have a court order. 

f just wanted ·to b~ing .out those things. We will, of· 

course, give you a written statement once we review the 

amendments, but that is our position as of right.now. 

Thank you very.much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Thank you. If they had a dead 

bolt~ how would pcA get in after the dead bolt was turned? 

MS. COVAIS: Well, I guess. that may be the same 

problem. But if, for example, the landlord was able to give 

notice, then the unit could still be secure, you know, and they 
would just take the dead bolt off. That might be the same 

problem. I guess we would have ~o work that out or something. 

But I think our problem with this whole- bill is, you can't 

legislate every little thing that happens. I mean, you can't 

put every instance in here wher~ a landlord would legitimately 

need to go into a unit. A child is locked out. That is a 
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legitimate reason to go into a unit. How does this bill allow 
'that landlord to let that child; who is wandering the hallways, 
who may ~be co,ld,, -who;· may, be hungry, .... or whatever.-- How does 

this bill allow· the. landlord to get -into. that. unit? . I-- don't· 

see where it allows him. That · is a very simple instance that 

this bill does not cover. 
I think the problem is, you can't legislate everything 

that happens. I think there has to be more of a voluntary way 
to do this, or a more flexible way to al low landlords and 

tenants to decide. If they are having a problem in the 
building, then yeah, maybe there is some kind of a voluntary 

way _they can solve it. But, to put this kind of law on every 

landlord, every building in this entire State, I think is 

really an inappropriate response to some isolated incidences. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Thank you. Linda Bowker. Yoti: 

represent the NOW organization, Linda? 

L I N D A B. B O W K E R: Yes . 

and I am the State President of the 

Women. of New.~e~sey. 

My name is Linda Bowker, 

National Organization for 

Most of my · . testimony: was for the amendments 

Assemblywoman Bush is including. I have to say that ·r can 

approach this as both a tenant · and a . landlord. I do know al 1 

kinds of people who are in the process of selling who are 
renting in the meantime. I do not think· this is overly 
restric'!:ive. I think it is more important to be looking at the 
tenants who are living in the apartments. 

When our Board of Directors, considered this 

legislation in taking a position, one o; the things that came 

· up was latchkey- children. Rather than it be a problem that the 

child ca_n' t get in, bec~use neighbors and friends or relatives 

in the area will generally have a key -- you know you can't 

trust an eigp.t- or nine- or ten--year-cld to hold onto a key; I 
don't know what they do· with them, but I know my nephew goes 

through keys like they were water -- I think it is more likely 

that there would be arrangements that that child cai-i---g,et __ i:n. 
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What is a problem, is having a young child in an. 

apartment and having a stranger walk in. I know with my 

nephew, he~- is very-· scary. about being home alone. They see so 

much on TV,-- that r·:think··they are more af.raid,·today·.than maybe 

they were in pa-st years. And to · know that someone can walk -in 

on that child is frightening not only for the child, but for 

the parents. 

I think this is a way of solving the problem. I, 

also, was a victim -- a small victim. The maintenance person 

came _in to paint a balcony -- and I was glad to have my balcony 

painted. But I didn't know this was going to happen, so the 

drapes weren't removed from the front of the window. Paint got 

on the drapes. Now, if they hadn't had a key, or they had 

notified me to take some precaution, I would have taken the 

drapes off. That is only minor compared to a major theft or a 

rape or some of the other serious consequences. 

I presented written testimony, so _I will not reiterate 

that. Most of our concerns have been addressed. This has been 

a longstanding concern of the National Organization for Women. 
. . . . 

It is riot only" women, however; it . is. ch.ildreti' and ·any -kind of 

disabled person, male or female, who would live in fear of what 

happens to that key. 

I urge you to adopt the amendments and to pass this 

bill out of Committee. Are there any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: No questions. Jacque 

Executive-- Vice President,· New Jersey Council 

Multi-Housing Industry. 

·Eaker, 

of the 

JACQUE EAKER: Hello. 
am the Executive Vice President 

the Multi-Housing Industry. 

My name is Jacque Eaker. ~ 

of t?e New Jersey Council of 

The MHI, I think, is · the largest association that 

represents just apartment owners in the State of New Jersey. 

Since the bill has· been amended so much, a lot of the remarks I 

had prepared are somewhat inappropriate, but I will do the best 

I can with some of the major points. 
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We vehemently oppose any legislative measure which 

would place onerous restrictions on the ability of an o:wner to 
gain--entry- to. dwelling-, units.· he ,owns; operates·; ·mainta}ns, - and 
is. liable'"for:- the·· health, sa.fety; -and· quiet--: en-joyment of-· his 

residents. 
I am sitting here and listening to all the stories on 

the down side: The reason for the bill; the . invasion of 

privacy. I am having a hard time believing that it happens at 

the level that would create a response where every apartment 
. . . 

owner in the State of New Jersey should be prohibited from 
having a key. I think, equally and as frequent, is the need to 

get into these units for emergency and health reasons. I don't 

see a balancing of the two of these. In the weight of things, 

they should have an equal amount of weight. 
There are specific emergencies which- would necessitate 

us getting in. For us to be advocating that we destroy· -

property in order to get into . an ·apartment that we should have 

had a key to.in order to protect that tenant's welfare to begin 
with-- It just seems neealess. 

. . ~ . . . . 

It would. creat·e ari · unworkable - bureaucracy. The· idea 

of a 1000-unit complex_ having a locked box with 100_0 envelopes·, 

and having that maintained_ on a daily basis, particularly if 

you have the Department of Community Affairs doing inspections 

-- if you have local inspections going on; a normal operation 
of inspections, e~terminations, certain maintenance programs 

~that you are trying to call out-- All of this is going on in 
the context, and you would be in and out of those envelopes, 
constantly having people come in and out signing the ,envelopes, 

opening their envelopes, sending notifications, and counting on 

the calendar which · notification went foi;: which part of the 

program you are trying to abate. It seems it.would be terribly 

difficult for us to keep control of. 'We would be jeopardizing 
the daily maintenance and business practices, and the 

administration of this proposed law would be a clerical 
nightmare. 
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The bill sanctions as I said before -- needless 

property · - destruction by permitting, under certain 

e-ircumstances., .entry ·by· breaking into,;_ -the · dwelling, · in an 

attempt to appease a tenant '·S· concern. for:· ·something· -that, •might 

happen. 

We are all watching the news. We are all paranoid. 

We are all concerned. In polling some of the apartment owners 

in the State prior to coming to this hearing, I specifically 

asked how many instances they recall having happened on their 

property dealing with this issue. I made 10 to 15 calls. · I am 

not going to say to you that I called 850 owners or 1000 

owners. I made 15 phone calls, and not one had an incident on 

their property where a person had entered an apartment for 

purposes other than what he was supposed to be doing. There 

may be a whole segment of the industry out there that I don't 

know and I am not operating with, but I find it hard to 

believe. I am not discounting that i,t happens. I do not want 

to minimize the concern over it. I just think this is such an 

extremely inappropriate way (?f han:dling the situation. 

I concur with the suggestion by the Builders 

Association that we should talk about reasonableness -- a 

system of what is reasonable entry -- but this becomes a little 

·bit of a problem. We believe that situations do occur that 

necessitate ready access to the dwelling for health. and safety 

reasons. Leaks often occur which not only have the potential 

of damaging the resident's apartment, but others as well. 

These are not unusual. Residents smelling gas in the hallways 

always demand that the leak be checked out immediately, whether 

or not the occupants are home. Tenants have been known to need 

medical assistance and are unable to open the door. Each and 

every in.stance cited here would require an owner to forcably. 

enter the apartment if he did. not have . a key, a needless and 
.) 

traumatic cause of damag~. 
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These and countless other examples demonstrate our 

belief that access for health and safety reasons far outweighs 
those.,"instances -.o.f potential abuse .. we respect the sponsor's 
a-ttempt it©; respond to· such.· abuses .. _-· However,; ... ,,we · oe-lieve A-17:57· 

goes. · beyond providing a solution and; in fact: Erodes a 

property owner's reasonable access to his property; creates a 

cumbersome system; increases the potential for health and 

safety hazards; increases the likelihood of needless property 

damage; and will potentially suspend any predictable ongoing 

maintenance of the premises. 

Obviously, the bill has been redrafted, but there are 
certain segments of the old bill that pertain, and I would just 

like to make some points: 

In the_ section that permitted the owner to entE!r the 

apartment if,. after a reasonable period of time had elapsed, . 
and after reasonable notice had be,en given, the tenant and 

landlord have not come to a. mutually agreeable, acceptable time 

for the landlord to enter, then the landlord may use the sealed 

key~ I th,ink thi~ is s~ill appropriate in the modifications. 
ASS~LYWOMAN BUSH: It·• s dropped. . . 

MS. EAKER: It's dropped entirely? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: In terms of all of that section, 

it has been dropped. 

MS. EAKER: Okay. So we couldn '.t go in under these 
circumstances. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: This bill · is only dealing with 
emergency situations at this time. Nothing is dealing, right 

now, in terms of-- {remainder of this comment is indiscernible) 

MS. EAKER: Okay. Well, then, that gets us into a 

major problem. Sue mentioned the DCA inspections, which are 

cyclical inspections every five years. If there· are any 

violations, they have to come back to make sure that the 
violations have been abated. In. the meantime, there may be 

local inspections which occur. There is an extermination 
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schedule that many of the properties have. ~here are plumbers, 

electricians,-· and other personnel scheduled on a daily basis to 

keep up· the·· property, which is· require:d to_ be. kept~' up,- by. t:he 

tenants-. ~ · · - - · ·· _ ·_ _ ... -. . 

To schedule these people, without having access to a 

key, would be absolutely impossible. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: If I may, Mr. Chairman, sometimes 

I wonder if I am listening to the same bill, because nothing 

here denies a landlord access to a key. I am hearing that over 

and over again. This bill does not deny the landlord access to 

a key. Many of the emergency situations you indicated, such as 

gas leaks, etc., etc., are addressed right in the bill. 

Without amendment, this was addressed in the bill. 

MS. EAKER: Okay .. It is addressed to th~ key. 

However, if previously _ the landlord violated section 4 in your 

previous bill, that key would no longer be in his possession, 

and he would have to break down the door in an emergency 

situation. 

ASSEMBL~OMAN BUSH: Right. If.he has acted illegally 

in the past, right, right_- The ··"clean hands theory'' is what 

-they call it in the practice. 

MS. EAKER: That creates problems. The way I am 

reading the bill, if you have keys they have to be· in sealed 

envelopes, correct? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Unless waived. 

MS. EAKER: Unless waived? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Yes. 

MS.- EAKER: 
notify the tenant. 

To use the key at that point, you must 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: That you have used it under an 
emergency. situation. 

MS . EAKER: Okay. So you' re saying to me that you 

cannot use that key under any other cir'cumstances. 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH : You .can notify the tenant that 

you are coming in and make arrangements in terms of doing it. 

That yqu can go. This b-ill, though,, on1y deals- wi-t~h be,ing, able 

to go ·into the envelope without permission and doing what you 

have to do. 

MS. EAKER: Okay. What i.t says to me, then, is I must 

now-- When the Department of Community Affairs is going to 

schedule an inspection--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Yes? 

MS. EAKER: --I must notify the tenants that an 

inspection is going to occur. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: It is my understandi~g--

MS. EAKER: Because I wouldn't have a key. It would 

be in an envelope. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Okay. 

MS. EAKER: I can It open that envelope. It is not an 

emergency . 

. ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH:· It is my understanding that 

within here it also indicates that you still have the rights . 

. you d~ as requires the landlord under city ordinance, Fede~aL . 

State, etc. , to go .in to do what is required -- those things. 

But you could_ not arbitrarily just say, "Well, I think I'll go 

in now and see if there are any mice." 

MS. EAKER: See, that presents a problem. In going in 

prior to an inspection to check 

see if I am going to get any 

reasonable entry? I don't think 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: 

permission, no. 

out the apartments to look to 

violations, is that considered 

so. 

Not without the tenant's 

MS. EAKER: I am not even clear that the--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: I'm saying, going. in prior to the 

inspection without the tenant's prior permission would not be 

considered, but with the tenant's permission, no problem. 
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MS. EAKER: But I would have to go into the envelope 

that is sealed. 
·.· · , ·, ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: ~You : go .for, their- permi ss io~, _ and 

say, .. _ "I:· --would like · to- come in.· - -- There. ~is- going--· to .. be an 

inspect-ion- to see how everything is going." 

MS. EAKER: They aren't home during the day. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: You can still get th~ir 

permission. You must have phone numbers, or something of that 

sort. 

MS. EAKER: 

open the envelope-­

MS. COVAIS 

Correct. But, I am not 

It has to be in writing? 

( speaking from audience) : 
. . 

to request .ace es s by writing. 

there, - so I must 

The landlord has 

MS.· .EAKER: Yeah, that is what it says in the bill. 
; ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH:_ What's wrong with that? 

MS. EAKER: Well, it's Monday. DCA calls me up, and 

says, "Sometime this .week, we are going to be on your property." 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN' BUSH: We:J_l, that is the way it is in 

the bill. now .. 

tenant. 
You .would_ have ~o have· permis.sion f~om _ th~ 

. ... 

MS. EAKER: Sometimes we don't get notifications of 

DCA inspections. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: That is the way the bill is right 
now. 

MS. EAKER: So, DCA inspectors would co~e out to the 

property. They must inspect a certain percentage of them in 

order to conclude this, If they didn't inepect them, they 

would have to keep coming back until such time as they 
inspected the number that they needed. '.!'hat is the way the 
practice is. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: It is my. understanding that with 

regard. to this, you would be able to go in under some type of 

required inspection by the State, etc. -- go into the ~nvelope~ 
notify the tenant within 24 hours, in writing, as to who would 

go in and for what purpose. 
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MS. EAKER: What happens if I don't get notified? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: May I finish? 
MS:~: :_:EAKER:: I Im- -sorry.' . '. n°-. cc' ' -•. : . 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Okay. : :-:Notify- them,_ and :_ then 

within seven days would have to go back in. 
MS. EAKER: But if I don't get notified~-

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: You' re talking about. -- as you 

said before -- that you are going in to pre-inspec~ before DCA 

comes. 

MS. EAKER: I can't do that. We caa. no longer do that. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: With the permission of the tenant. 

MS. EAKER: Okay, but if I do that to just do normal 

routine maintenance, in order to have less violations, because 

there is a crack here or something -- I· need to abate some 
small things--.- If I do that, I have to noti.fy all the 

tenants. Then I have to be prepared· to unseal the envelopes, 

and then have everybody come back in, in s-even days. It is a 

bureaucratic nightmare _just to fulfill a requirement of the 

.State that I· get ~y property inspec:ted every five years. 
·- Th~·· D~pa~tment is ·ha~ing.· a v-er:y dif°fi.cult .ti~e ·getting. 

these inspections done. They are not being done every five 
years, because there is a back-log. Now you• re saying if we 

don't have access to enough apartments, they have to keep 
coming back and coming back uritil they do, and there are 
tenants who ~re just not ever going to l~t those people · in. -

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: I'm saying it is my unde;-standing 
that in terms of inspection by DCA, • that would be no problem. 
But in terms of you, as the landlord, doing a pre-inspection 

without DCA, you would need the _tenant• s permission to do so. 
With any law, we are trying to weigh the benefit as opposed to 

the dettiment,. and it is also a tenant's right to know that 
someone is coming in, an.d when. 

28 

. . _..,... '"'"'. ~•• •'I•. ,. "' . • •. "' ••v-,•-.. •. ,' . •l •~•..- • ' 



MS. EAKER: I am going to have to spend a little bit 
more time looking at the amendments, because we really believe 
that plumbers--,,,_. We, will have an impossible time hiring 
plumbers, elect-ric,ians, a-11 kinds,- of tradespe-ople.,"=" It ·would be 
impossible. We vehemently oppose the bill. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Now we have one more. Mr. Clinton 
Barlowe, will you please come up? Mrs. Gloria Barlowe? 
CLINTON BARLOWE: She's not here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay. 
MR; BARLOWE: This matter concerning the bill 

section 15 of the bill--
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Oh, section 15? 
MR. BARLOWE: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Do you mean line 15? 
MR. BARLOWE! ¥es, line 15. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Okay. 
MR. BARLOWE: It deals with the same issue of the key, 

but the landlord didn't provide it to Public Service so they 
· could get in to check the ·meter. Tp.erefore, her _ service was 
cut off, because the key was not provided to Public Service. 

My understanding is vice versa. That is what. my 
question is about. How would I support that as a complaint to 
this Committee? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Address the lawyer. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: What did you say, line 15? 
MR. BARLOWE: Yes.· It is about providing the key. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: It is about putting the key ~ in 

the envelope and the tenant signing the flap. If the tenant 
chooses to do this, the tenant can alleviate the problem. If 
the landlord and tenant agree, they can sign a waiver saying, 
"I want to give the key directly to the landlord and not deal 
with this." Then you have no problem. 

·.MR. BARLOWE: Okay, which it was not. Therefore, she 
was violated. For that matter, Public Servi6e was not issued a 
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key by the landlord, nor_ the tenant, because the landlord did 

not furnish one to the tenant for them to get in and check the 

servic~--- :·::>_ ·· - _,, · 

•. ASSEMBLYWOL'11AN BUSH: ·. Where : was. , the . meter, ·-in• the· 

tenant's apartment or in the basement? 

MR. BARLOWE: In the basement. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Okay, that is not relevant to 

this. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: That has nothing to do with this 

bill. 

MR. BARLOWE: Oh, but it is dealing with the key on 

this. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: No, this--

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: This bill deals only with where 

the.tenant liv.es. It has nothing to do with where the electric 

service is. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: We' re talking about the key to 

the tenant's apartment. 

MR. BARLOWE: Oh, <:>kay, to the tenant's apartm~nt on· 

that? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Right, yeah. 

MR. BARLOWE: It's like a dwelling apartment on that? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Right, but it wouldn't be 

pertinent to what you're talking about. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: This bill would have nothing to do 
with that at all. 

MR. BARLOWE: It would not at all? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: No, it doesn't relate to that. It 

only relates to where the tenant lives. It has nothing to do 

with the electric service or the- gas service. That is the 

landlord' s-- He has the key to that. Now, I don't know who 

you sue there, for them not giving the key to Public S~rvice. 

MR. BARLOWE: Okay. Even though she lives in the same 

building? 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Yeah, right. 
MR. BARLOWE: -- It is· like · a<----three-dwelling building. 

That matter has to be-~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN· KELLY-:· It -·has· nothing·- --to-u:o --with:· this 

bill. 

. MR. BARLOWE: Would Community Affairs be involved? 

Would I have to go back to Community Affairs on that matter? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I would get a good attorney, if I 

were you, or go to. Legal Services to see if you could get some 

assistance. 
MR. BARLOWE: Yeah, because I had forwarded it to a 

House -of Representatives committee in Washington. They are 

looking into- the matter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Well, I would recommend that you 

go to Legal Services. Where to you live, in East Orange? 

MR. BARLOWE: No, I live in Trenton. 

: ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Trenton? I would go to Trenton 

Legal Aid. Maybe they can help you. We can't do anything. 

This bill llas nothing to do with that, ~ir. 
MR. BARLOWE: ·Oh, . okay; · Thank you: 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Now, Stephanie, . I have one thing 

here. I have a key. This is a master key. It is 18 years 

old. I. have a. building with 62 doors in it. Each door has a 

separate key. There is no way the key can be duplicated. If 

you look at this key, it can't be duplicated. If ever I lose 

it, I have to order it from a factory out West somewhere. 

Every one of the tenants' keys is made identical to that. I 

. have a master key that opens every one of those-- Any door in 
that building can be opened with that k~y. What would I do if 

I . had such a system -- if a landlord had such a system as I 
have? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Hopefully, he would be able to 

get a waiver from all of the tenants; indicating they were not 

going to deal with having the key put into an envelope where it 

has to be--
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ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: 

system to begin with. 
:.-.. - - '.""ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: 

It is an extremely expensive 

I would tend to think that since 

the tenants-know,-you have a master-_-key;---and if- there has been 

no problem, it would be--

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I have never been in any apartment 

yet, but there are such keys that exist.· To eliminate 100 

keys, there is one key. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: Right. But then think about in 

another situation where there is one key, and the landlord, or 

the people who work for him, are not as good and as nice as you 

are, and the fear the tenants have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I don't have tenants living in 

it. I don't want you to think these are--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUSH: How do we know? We have this on 

tape. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Okay, all right. If you want to 

address us, come on· up. (speaking to a member of the -

audience) We have a few minutes before they arrest us. 
s. ·P A T R I C -f A- c o M s T o c ·K: - Thank you,- Assemblyman· 

Kelly. My name is Trish Comstock; I am President of the 

Bloomfield Tenant Organization. I am. not going to get mixed up 

with the amendments and the new things. I just want to · say 

basically, I am so surprised to hear -- and I'm sorry that 

Assemblyman Zecker isn't here -- that he hadn't heard about 
these abuses, because I can tell you -- and I talk to tenants 

all the time-- I was at a meeting just last night. It was on 

Dodd Street, just so -you know I am not faking it -- 911 Dodd 

Street. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: I know where it is. 

MS. COMSTOCK: Okay. Standard operating procedure in 

that building is to come in to do repairs, no notice, no 

emergency, no anything. Tenants have felt that their privacy 

was abused. Also, many people now are afraid to complain 

because of the tight housipg situation. 
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Essentially, no one objects to having inspections and 

repairs. In fact, in my complex, we beg for repairs and we beg 

for inspeet-ions·;. "and. we :are' ignored. _ _ _. - --

I- :want to. comment also about my own- complex a - large 

one -- that we know for a fact they have employed work-release 

prisoners in the past. I don't know if they are still doing 

that. I have no objection to giving someone a chance who has 

been in prison. However, to entrust them with keys and so· on 

is something quite different. Someone from the real estate 

industry talked about breaking and entry, and said that this 

wasn't going to stop breaking and entry. The point is, these 

are not breaking and entry thefts. They are gotten in. No 

tenant who has been away on vacation, or for the weekend, or at 

work, comes back and finds the door damaged. People have 

gotten in. Cameras, jewelry, and other things disappear. When 

this happened and they watched-- Maintenance men know when you 

are around. 

Ten years ago, when we had a series of non break and 

entry. thefts, I ins_talled a chain lock., which is .similar to the 

top lock and the bottom lock in New York. . Al 1 -it means is, 11 I 

want notice. 11 · I love to have the landlord come in and repair. 

That is not the problem. I just want to be given 24-hour 

notice. I think most of the tenants would like the same thing 

and, in fact, not only would like it, but really are entitled. 

If we look at the old English law, a _person's house is his 

castle. I think the right to privacy must be honored. I think 

the owner's right has to be honored, too, but with reasonable 

notice. If the owner can't find repair people· who can wor:k on 
a schedule, then he better get a new ·pl~er or a new 

electrician who can work on a schedule. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KELLY: Thank you. 

I think that concludes our hearing. No one eJ:"se here 

to testify? (no response) Thank you for coming. Good day. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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APPENDIX 



tJATIONAL 
ORGANIZATION 

FOR WOMEN 

NOW - NJ 
NATIONAL ORGANIZATION FOR WOMEN 

OF NEW JERSEY 
110 W. State Street, Trenton, New Jersey 08698 

(609) 393-0156 

TESTIMONY OF LINDA B. BOWKER, NOW-NJ PRESIDENT, ON Al757 BEFORE THE NEW JERSEY 
ASSEMBLY HOUSING COMMITTEE, JUNE 2, 1988 

My name is Linda B. Bowker. I am the President of the National Organization 
for Women of New Jersey. 

NOW-NJ has a long-standing position in support of limiting the access of 
landlords to rental dwel1ings. 

A11 peop1e have a right to privacy, not just peop1e who own their own 
residences. Some 1andlords, if they have a key, wi11 violate a tenant's 
privacy. The scope of this violation can be very wide: from an annoying 
inconvenient interruption to rape or theft. With the growin~ number of 
11 1atchkey children 11 , we are also concerned for the trauma experienced by a 
child home a 1 one when a stranger uses a key to enter the child I s home 
unexpectedly. 

~~hile we appreciate the intent of the Tenants• and Landlords' Key Act, 
we strong1y urge that some amendments be made. 

Under reason (e) for a landlord using a key to enter a dwe1ling, there 
should be a need for founediate entry rather than just a need for entry. 

Reason (ct) should be omitted completely because it is so vague as to allow 
the landlord to enter at will. The landlord can just claim the dwe.lling 
did not appear s~cure. 

Since the entire envelope system should be voluntary for those tenants vvt10 
do not want to bear responsibility for paying for a new door which must be 
broken down for access; the section dealing with a_ tenant who replaces the 
lock, should say that a tenant _!!lay give~ new key to the landlord. The 
tenant should not be required to replace the key. 

Of the highest importance~ NOW-NJ believes, is that this 1aw must not require 
that tenants give landlords a key as a condition of tenancy. 

In a w~rld of escalating stress where peop1e fee1 more and more the 1ack of 
control over their own lives, there must be a safe haven. People must be able 
to feel safe and secure in their homes. Knowing that someone has access to a 
key to your home - a key that can be used at any time'"' does not engender 
feelings of security. Actua1ly, even worse, the requirement that landlords 
have keys sets up many potentia1 tragedies. 

Without amendments, NOW-NJ be1ieves this bi1l would be harmful to many New 
Jersey citizens. I ~;trongly urge that this committee amend Al757 to protect 
tenants and then vote the bill out of committee. 



Honorable John V. Kelly 
Chairman, As_sembly Housing Committee 
484 Bloomfield Avenue, Suite 11 
Montclair, New Jersey 07042 

Re: A-1757(88) Tenants• and Landlords• Key Act 

D~ar ._ John,. 

I am writing to you on behalf of the New Jersey Council of Savings 
Institutions regarding A-1757(88), which is scheduled for a public 
hearing on June 2, 1988. Regretfully, I will be unable to attend this 
hearing to testify as I will be atte-nding our annual convention at 
that time. Kindly accept this letter in lieu of oral testimony. 

As a lender, a bank as mo.rtgagee relies on its ability to foreclose on 
a piece of property when a mortgagor has permanently defaulted on a 
1 oan obligation. Although lenders only foreclose reluctantly, it is 
the legal mechanism that pennits them to protect their investment port• 
fol fos. The cou:rts · in New Jersey have recognized this tn the case of 
Guttenburg vs. Rivera as vital to the financial soundness of banking 
in this state. · · ·. . . . . 

-.. 
This being" the :Case, the Coundl respectfully requests' that an exemp­
tion be added- for prope,:-ties in foreclos-ure. We sugg.est that the 
following or simi 1 ar language be added: 

Any interest in any property of a landlord conveyed incidental 
to the financing of the property, or resulting from t.he 
foreclosure of a mortgage, deed of trust, or other- instrument 
encumbering the property, or any deed given in lieu of such 
foreclosure, is exempt from the provisions of this act. 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this bil 1. 

Damiano 

SJO/bs 

cc: Assemblywoman Bush 
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